
 

                                     Chester County Council October 18th, 2021 Agenda                                          1 
 

CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
           R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                                       1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                           Monday, October 18th, 2021 at 6:00PM 

         
      Agenda   

 
  
        
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3. Approval of Minutes- October 4th, 2021 Council Minutes.   

4. Citizen Comments 

5. Public Hearing-None 

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations  

               a. 2nd Reading of 2021-6 An Ordinance Authorizing (1) The Execution And Delivery Of A Second 
                    Amendment To That Certain Special Source Credit Agreement Previously Entered Into By And  
                    Between Chester County, South Carolina And Insurance Institute For Business And Home Safety;  
                    And (2) Other Matters Related Thereto.  
 
    b. 2nd Reading of 2021-16 Authorizing Funding For One Or More Projects According To The  
                    American Recovery Plan Act Of 2021; And Other Related Matters.  
  
                c.  2nd Reading of 2021-17 Amending Ordinance Nos. 2018-5 And 3-19-12a, To Update The  
                    Definition Of “Projects” Under An Installment Purchase Plan Of Finance; And Other Related  
                    Matters. 
 
    d.  2nd Reading of 2021-18 Providing For Excess Funding To Be Used For “Projects” And/ Or 
                    “Capital Projects” As Provided Under Ordinance No. 2019-5, And Other Related Matters. 
                
7. Old Business  

                a. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-28: Mattie Howze request Tax Map # 160-00-00-025-000 located  
                   at Georgetown Rd, Great Falls SC to be rezoned from R1 (Rural 1) to RG-2 (General Residential). 

 Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve.  

                b. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-29: Leonard Stevens Bishop request part of Tax Map # 079-00-00- 
                     032-000 located on Village Dr, Chester SC to be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi-family Residential)  
                     to LC (Limited Commercial).  Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve. 

 
                c. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-30: Nate McDaniel request Tax Map # 060-00-02-010-000 located 

 at 1047 Pinckney Rd, Chester SC to be rezoned from R2 (Rural 2) to ID-3 (General Industrial).  
 Planning Commission voted 5-1 to approve with a reverter clause once the business is no longer   

                    in existence (leveling the lot and removing gravel), it will revert back to R2.  

 

                d. Discussion regarding the 90-day moratorium placed on planned development applications.  

 



 

                                     Chester County Council October 18th, 2021 Agenda                                          2 
 

8. New Business 
 
                  a.  Council to approve a bid for a multi-year contract for Preventative Maintenance - Fire  
                       Apparatus in the amount of $29,080.90 dollars. - Procurement Director Susan Cok.  
 
      b.  Council to consider changing Billing Clerk to QA/Ql Billing Specialist on the EMS  
                       Organization Chart. EMS Director Britt Lineberger. 
 

     c.  Council to authorize the acceptance of $50,000 dollars to be given to the Fort Lawn Fire  
                Protection District to purchase water rescue equipment. State Representative Randy 
                       Ligon and Chief David Dutton.  
 

     d. Council to authorize Fort Lawn Fire Protection District to apply for a $10,000 dollar grant  
         from the SC Forestry Commission with a $5000 dollar match to purchase a new drop tank and  

                      forestry gear. Fire Chief David Dutton. 
 
       e. Council to authorize Lando Fire Protection District to apply for a $10,000 dollar grant from 
                      the SC Forestry Commission with a $5000 dollar match to purchase a Unication G5 Pager.  
                      Fire Chief Eddie Murphy.   
 

     f. Council to approve a mulit-year contract with Axon for body and car cameras in the amount 
                      $867,346.28 -Sheriff Dorsey. 
 

     g.  Council to approve the acceptance of a JAG grant for Detention Officers safety vests with a  
                       10 % match. -Sheriff Dorsey.  
  

     h.  Council to approve the acceptance of a COVID Emergency Supplemental grant for computers  
          with no match. -Sheriff Dorsey.  

 
9. Boards and Commissions- None 

10. Executive Session 

     a.  Receive legal advice regarding Project 2177. -Attorney Winters. 

     b.  Receive legal advice regarding Project 2169.- Attorney Winters. 

     c.  Receive legal advice regarding Project 2162.  Attorney Winters.  

     d.  Receive legal advice regarding a contractual matter in Building & Zoning. -Attorney Winters 

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session 

     a.  Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2177. 

     b.  Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2169. 

                 c.  Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2162. 

     d. Action taken regarding legal advice for a contractual matter in Building & Zoning.  

12. Council Comments 

13. Adjourn 

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the 
Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the 
bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 



 

                                     Chester County Council October 18th, 2021 Agenda                                          3 
 

     ***PUBLIC NOTICE***   
Chester County Council has relaxed some of the COVID measures put into place for personal appearances at County 
Council meetings but continues to encourage social distancing while in County facilities. 

    
Guidelines for Addressing Council 

                                                          Citizens Comments: 

• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes 
 
                                                         Public Hearings: 

• Each speaker will be limited to a three-minute presentation 
                                                          When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address 
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed 
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council 
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed 

 

                             Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

• Use profanity 
• Stray from the subject 
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council 

     



 

                                                  Chester County Council Meeting Minutes October 4th, 2021                                                          1 
 

        CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  
                 R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                       1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                              Monday, October 4th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
            
       Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan, Councilman Mike  
        Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman William Killian, Councilman Pete Wilson, County Attorney Joanie Winters  
         and Clerk to Council Karen Lee.  
  
        
1. Call to Order-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick called the meeting to order. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation- Pledge was recited in unison; Vice Chairman Branham gave the invocation. 

3. Approval of Minutes – September 20th, 2021 Council Minutes. 
 Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
  
4. Citizen Comments-No one signed up to speak.  

5. Public Hearing-Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick opened the public hearing. No one signed up to speak 

   a. 3rd Reading of 2021-11 An Ordinance To Amend The Master Agreement Governing The York-Chester 
                   Industrial Park Between Chester County, South Carolina And York County, South Carolina So As To  
                   Enlarge The Park. Public hearing was closed.  
 
6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations  

   a. 3rd Reading of 2021-11 An Ordinance To Amend The Master Agreement Governing The York-Chester 
                   Industrial Park Between Chester County, South Carolina And York County, South Carolina So As To  
                   Enlarge The Park. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 
       6-0 to approve.  
 

  b.  1st Reading of 2021-6 An Ordinance Authorizing (1) The Execution And Delivery Of A Second  
      Amendment To That Certain Special Source Credit Agreement Previously Entered Into By And  
      Between Chester County, South Carolina And Insurance Institute For Business And Home Safety; And  

(2) Other Matters Related Thereto.  Bond Attorney Michael Kozlarek stated the agreement amendment 
would be for a twenty-year period with an eighty percent credit, the current credit was ninety-five percent and 
had come down. This is an increase of revenue expected for the county and slightly reduced credit for the 
company. This simply provides an amendment to the existing amendment to adjust the credit percentage and 
the length of time remaining in the agreement. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Vice 
Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
         

7. Old Business  

                 a.  3rd Reading of CCMA21-27 Chris and Alma Hoskins request Tax Map # 122-01-03-010-000 located at  
                   4431 Edgeland Road, Edgemoor SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to GC (General Commercial).  
                   Planning Commission voted 4-0 to approve. Councilman Jordan motioned to approve with a reverter clause  
        if the business ceases it would revert back to R2 zoning, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                  Chester County Council Meeting Minutes October 4th, 2021                                                          2 
 

8. New Business 

               a. 1st Reading of CCMA21-28: Mattie Howze request Tax Map # 160-00-00-025-000 located at Georgetown          
                   Rd, Great Falls SC to be rezoned from R1 (Rural 1) to RG-2 (General Residential). Planning Commission 

      voted 6-0 to approve. Councilman Vaughn stated he had concerns about the previous actions taken on the road  
      and if her and the other neighbors would have any problems with the setbacks. Attorney Winters stated Ms.  
      Howze was having a survey done for the property and that would determine the standard setbacks along with  
      the prescriptive easement that was talked about. It would also show where the property lines would be and where  
      the easement would go through. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Vote  
      6-0 to approve.  

 
               b. 1st Reading of CCMA21-29: Leonard Stevens Bishop request Tax Map # 079-00-00-032-000 located on  

   Village Dr, Chester SC to be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi-family Residential) to LC (Limited Commercial).    
                   Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by Councilman  
                   Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

 c.  1st Reading of CCMA21-30: Nate McDaniel request Tax Map # 060-00-02-010-000 located at 1047  
      Pinckney Rd, Chester SC to be rezoned from R2 (Rural 2) to ID-3 (General Industrial). Planning 
      Commission voted 5-1 to approve with a reverter clause once the business is no longer in existence (leveling  

                   the lot and removing gravel), it will revert back to R2. Planning Director Mike Levister stated Mr. McDaniel  
 planned to reclaim the dirt on the property, under the zoning regulations it is considered as mining but it actually 
 isn’t mining. The property has 1.5 million square yards of good dirt.  
 
 Councilman Wilson stated he must cover seed and plant as he removes the dirt, so it’s not left with erosion and 
 sediment. It has gone through the DHEC process.  
 
 Attorney Winters stated it was important to note he’s regulated by DHEC and MSHA (Mine Safety and Health   
 Administration) which is the mining arm of OSHA.  
 
 Councilman Wilson suggested if Attorney Winters could see if the County could legally limit his digging to 15 
 acres instead of 25-acre limit which he has now. The applicant was totally on board with the 15-acre limit.  
 
 Vice Chairman Branham asked what the plans were for the property after all the dirt was gone.  
 
 Mr. Levister stated Mr. McDaniel had stated he may sell the property or put cattle on it. Councilman Wilson 
 motioned to approve with a reverter clause, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
   

9.         Boards and Commissions 
   a. Appointment to the Catawba Mental Health Board-County Council. 
       Councilman Jordan motioned to appoint Sam Stone, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
10.       Executive Session 
            Councilman Jordan motioned to go to executive session, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
    a. Receive legal advice regarding the APRA. Attorney Winters. 

    b. Receive legal advice regarding the CFC. Attorney Winters.  

    c. Receive legal advice regarding Capital Projects. Attorney Winters. 

    d. Receive legal advice regarding Project Magma. Attorney Winters.  

                e. Receive legal advice on a contractual matter regarding the Sheriff’s Office. Attorney Winters. 

    f. Receive legal advice on a contractual matter regarding the Sheriff’s Office. Attorney Winters. 

    g. Receive legal advice regarding the Detention Center. Attorney Winters.  



 

                                                  Chester County Council Meeting Minutes October 4th, 2021                                                          3 
 

11.      Council Actions Following Executive Session 
           Vice Chairman Branham motioned to go to come back to regular session, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0  
           to approve.  
 

a. Action taken regarding legal advice on APRA.  
Councilman Wilson motioned to approve an ordinance authorizing funding for one or more projects 
according to the American Recovery Plan Act of 2021, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to 
approve.  
 

b. Action taken regarding legal advice on CFC. 
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve amending ordinance numbers 2018-5 and 3-19-12A to update the  
definition of projects under an installment purchase plan of finance and other related matters, second by Vice 
Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
c. Action taken regarding legal advice on Capital Projects. 

Councilman Jordan motioned to approve the first reading of an ordinance providing for excess funding to be 
used for projects and other capital projects as provided under ordinance number 2019-5 and other related 
matters, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 

d. Action taken regarding legal advice on Project Magma.  
Councilman Killian motioned to approve the memorandum of understanding with Project Magma regarding 
sewage improvements and other related matters second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve. 
 

e. Action taken regarding legal advice on a contractual matter for the Sheriff’s Office.  
Taken as information.  
 

f. Action taken regarding legal advice for a contractual matter for the Sheriff’s Office. 
       Taken as information.  
 
g. Action taken regarding legal advice for the Detention Center. 

Councilman Jordan motioned to authorize the Sheriff’s department to proceed with an engineering 
assessment at the Detention Center, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

  

12.      Council Comments 
Interim Chairman Frederick asked Council to send him their feedback on the comprehensive plan by October 12th. 
He also reminded everyone about the workshop with Charlie Compton regarding the zoning ordinance tomorrow at 
5 pm. 

 
13.      Adjourn 
           Councilwoman Guy motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to adjourn.  
 
Time: 8:30 PM.  
 
      
 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 
Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were 
notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 



 

 

                                                       STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER COUNTY 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-6 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT PREVIOUSLY 
ENTERED INTO BY AND BETWEEN CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA AND INSURANCE INSTITUTE FOR BUSINESS AND 
HOME SAFETY; AND (2) OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Chester County, South Carolina (“County”), acting by and through its County Council 
(“Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina, 1976, as amended through the date hereof (“Code”), particularly Title 4, Chapter 1 of the 
Code (“Multi-County Park Act” or, as to Section 4-1-175 thereof, the “Special Source Act”) (collectively, 
“Act”) and by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to acquire, or cause to be 
acquired, certain industrial and commercial properties and to enter into agreements, with certain investors 
to construct, operate, maintain, and improve such properties through which the economic development of 
the State of South Carolina (“State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize the manpower, agricultural 
products and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu 
of ad valorem tax payments with respect to such properties in accordance with the Multi-County Park Act; 
(iii) to permit such investors to claim special source revenue credits (“Special Source Credits”) against their 
fee in lieu of ad valorem tax payments to reimburse such investors for expenditures in connection with 
infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real estate and personal property, including 
machinery and equipment, used in the operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprises in order to 
enhance the economic development of the County (“Special Source Improvements”); and (iv) to develop, 
in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial park in order to afford certain 
enhanced income tax credits to such investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 04-06-09A, duly enacted by the Council on April 6, 2009, and 
Ordinance No. 12-03-12F, duly enacted by the Council on December 3, 2012, the County and Insurance 
Institute for Business and Home Safety, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Illinois and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, and frequently known as the Institute for Business and Home Safety (the “Company”), 
respectively entered into that certain Special Source Credit Agreement, dated as of October 20, 2008, and 
that certain Amendment to Special Source Credit Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2012 
(collectively, the “Special Source Credit Agreement”), wherein the County granted Special Source Credits 
to the Company, any affiliates of the Company, and certain other entities (each a “Credit Eligible Entity”) 
to reimburse each such Credit Eligible Entity for a portion of its investment in the costs of certain Special 
Source Improvements undertaken in connection with the development and establishment of certain facilities 
located in the County (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, in order to induce continued investment in the Project, including, without limitation, in 
Special Source Improvements, the County has determined to extend the period during which such Special 
Source Credits will be made available to each Credit Eligible Entity, all as set forth in greater detail in the 
Second Amendment to Special Source Credit Agreement (“Second Amendment”), the substantially final 
form of which is attached as Exhibit A. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council:  

 



 

 

         Ordinance 2021-6 

Section 1. Ratification of Special Source Credit Agreement. The terms and conditions of the Special 
Source Credit Agreement are ratified, confirmed, and approved, except as otherwise specifically modified 
by the Second Amendment.         

Section 2. Second Amendment to Special Source Credit Agreement. 

(a) The form, terms, and provisions of the Second Amendment presented to this meeting and filed with 
the Clerk to County Council, including the twenty-year extension of the number of years for which the 
Special Source Credits will be made available to each Credit Eligible Entity, as set forth in the table below 
and shown in greater detail in the Second Amendment, are approved and all of the terms, provisions, and 
conditions of the Second Amendment are incorporated by reference;  

Percentage Property Tax Year 
98% 2009 
98% 2010 
85% 2011 
95% 2012 
95% 2013 
95% 2014 
95% 2015 
95% 2016 
95% 2017 
95% 2018 
95% 2019 
95% 2020 
95% 2021 
80% 2022 
80% 2023 
80% 2024 
80% 2025 
80% 2026 
80% 2027 
80% 2028 
80% 2029 
80% 2030 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 

2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 
2041 

 

Notwithstanding the above provisions of this Ordinance, in the event that the annual fee-in-lieu of tax 
liability due with respect to any of the property tax years set forth above would, following application of 
the Special Source Credits percentage applicable for such property tax year as set forth in the above table,  



 

 

Ordinance 2021-6 

amount to less than the annual fee-in-lieu of tax payment made with respect to property tax year 2020, 
which the County and the Company agree to be $36,704 (the “Base Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Payment Amount”), 
the applicable Special Source Credits percentage for such property tax year shall be reduced in an amount 
sufficient such that the annual fee-in-lieu of tax liability due for such property tax year after application of 
such reduced Special Source Credits percentage shall equal the Base Fee-in-Lieu-of-Tax Payment Amount; 
provided, however, that, for any such property tax year, the applicable Special Source Credits percentage 
shall not be reduced to increase the annual fee-in-lieu of tax liability, as set forth in the foregoing sentence, 
if, and to the extent that, any above-referenced shortfall in annual fee-in-lieu of tax liability (as compared 
to the Base Fee-in-Lieu-of-Tax Payment Amount) is due to disposal, decommissioning, or other action 
resulting in Project property no longer being subject to fee-in-lieu of tax payments; and 

(b) The Second Amendment to be executed on behalf of the County shall be in substantially the form 
now before the Council and shall include only changes that are approved by the County officials executing 
the Second Amendment. The County officials shall consult the attorney for the County with respect to any 
changes to the Second Amendment. The execution of the Second Amendment by County officials shall 
constitute conclusive evidence that they have approved all changes to or revisions of the Second 
Amendment now before this meeting. 

Section 3. Authorization to Execute and Deliver Second Amendment. The County Supervisor (and 
his designated appointees) is authorized and directed, in the name of and on behalf of the County, to execute 
and deliver the Second Amendment, and to take further actions and execute and deliver further documents 
as the County Supervisor (and his designated appointees) deems reasonably necessary and prudent to effect 
this Ordinance’s intent. 

Section 4. General Repealer. Any prior ordinance, resolution or order, the terms of which are in conflict 
with this Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective after its third reading and public hearing. 

[ONE SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  



 

 

                                          Ordinance 2021-6 

 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

        
Dr. Wylie Frederick 
Interim Supervisor/Chairman, Chester County Council 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

        
Karen Lee 
Clerk, Chester County Council 

First Reading:  October 4, 2021 
Public Hearing:  October 18, 2021 
Second Reading: November 1, 2021 
Third Reading:  November 1, 2021 

  



 

 

                                              Ordinance 2021-6 
 

EXHIBIT A 
FORM OF SECOND AMENDMENT TO SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

 



 

 

Ordinance 2021-6 

 

 
 

 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO 

 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 
 

BETWEEN 
 
 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

AND 
 

INSURANCE INSTITUTE FOR BUSINESS 
AND HOME SAFETY 

 
 

AMENDED, EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Second Amendment pertains to that certain Special Source Credit Agreement previously 
entered into by and between Chester County, South Carolina, and Insurance Institute for Business 
and Home Safety, as amended by that certain Amendment to Special Source Credit Agreement. 

 
 



 

7 

                                                                                                           Ordinance 2021-6 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO 

SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Second 
Amendment”), effective November 1, 2021, is between CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a 
body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), and 
the INSURANCE INSTITUTE FOR BUSINESS AND HOME SAFETY, an Illinois corporation and an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and 
frequently known as the Institute for Business and Home Safety (the “Company”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council”), is authorized and 
empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended 
through the date hereof (the “Code”), particularly Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park 
Act” or, as to Section 4-1-175 thereof, the “Special Source Act”) (collectively, the “Act”) and by Article 
VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to acquire, or cause to be acquired, certain 
industrial and commercial properties and to enter into agreements, with certain investors to construct, 
operate, maintain, and improve such properties through which the economic development of the State of 
South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize the manpower, agricultural 
products and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu 
of ad valorem tax payments with respect to such properties in accordance with the Multi-County Park Act; 
(iii) to permit such investors to claim special source revenue credits (“Special Source Credits”) against their 
fee in lieu of ad valorem tax payments to reimburse such investors for expenditures in connection with 
infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real estate and personal property, including 
machinery and equipment, used in the operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprises in order to 
enhance the economic development of the County (“Special Source Improvements”); and (iv) to develop, 
in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial park in order to afford certain 
enhanced income tax credits to such investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 04-06-09A, duly enacted by the Council on April 6, 2009, and 
Ordinance No. 12-03-12F, duly enacted by the Council on December 3, 2012, the County and the Company 
respectively entered into that certain Special Source Credit Agreement, dated as of October 20, 2008, and 
that certain Amendment to Special Source Credit Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2012 
(collectively, the “Special Source Credit Agreement”), wherein the County has granted Special Source 
Credits to the Company, any affiliates of the Company, and certain other entities (each a “Credit Eligible 
Entity”) to reimburse each such Credit Eligible Entity for a portion of its investment in the costs of certain 
Special Source Improvements undertaken in connection with the development and establishment of certain 
facilities located in the County (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, in order to induce continued investment in the Project, including, without limitation, in 
Special Source Improvements, the County has determined to extend the period during which such Special 
Source Credits will be made available to each Credit Eligible Entity, all as set forth in greater detail in this 
Second Amendment; 

WHEREAS, the County approved the foregoing action to be taken, and authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Second Amendment pursuant to that certain Ordinance duly enacted by the Council with 
respect to this Second Amendment on November 1, 2021. 

           

 



 

8 

Ordinance 2021-6 

         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are incorporated herein by 
reference, and respective representations and agreements hereinafter contained, and other lawful 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the Company 
agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions. Defined terms used in this Second Amendment and not otherwise defined in 
this Second Amendment have the meanings ascribed to them in the Special Source Credit Agreement. 

Section 2. Amendment of Special Source Credit Agreement. Section 1 of the Special Source Credit 
Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

Section 1. Special Source Credits. The County hereby grants each 
of the Company, any affiliates of the Company, and any other entities 
described in Section (d) of the above recitals (each a “Credit Eligible 
Entity”) Special Source Credits to reimburse each such Credit Eligible 
Entity for a portion of its investment in the costs of certain Special Source 
Improvements in the percentages and for the property tax years as follows:  

Percentage Property Tax Year 
98% 2009 
98% 2010 
85% 2011 
95% 2012 
95% 2013 
95% 2014 
95% 2015 
95% 2016 
95% 2017 
95% 2018 
95% 2019 
95% 2020 
95% 2021 
80% 2022 
80% 2023 
80% 2024 
80% 2025 
80% 2026 
80% 2027 
80% 2028 
80% 2029 
80% 2030 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 
80% 

2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 
2041 

                       



 

9 

  
     Ordinance 2021-6 

        

The County Auditor is hereby directed to apply the Special Source 
Credits amount to reduce each Credit Eligible Entity’s annual fee-in-lieu 
of tax liability at the Project in the amounts and for the years specified 
above. The Special Source Credits amounts shall be shown on the bill sent 
by the County to the Company or other applicable Credit Eligible Entity 
at the Project. Each Credit Eligible Entity shall be required to use the 
Special Source Credits to reimburse itself for a portion of its investment 
in the costs of certain Special Source Improvements. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 1, in the 
event that the annual fee-in-lieu of tax liability due with respect to any of 
the property tax years set forth above would, following application of the 
Special Source Credits percentage applicable for such property tax year as 
set forth in the above table, amount to less than the annual fee-in-lieu of 
tax payment made with respect to property tax year 2020, which the parties 
hereto agree to be $36,704 (the “Base Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Payment 
Amount”), the applicable Special Source Credits percentage for such 
property tax year shall be reduced in an amount sufficient such that the 
annual fee-in-lieu of tax liability due for such property tax year after 
application of such reduced Special Source Credits percentage shall equal 
the Base Fee-in-Lieu-of-Tax Payment Amount; provided, however, that, 
for any such property tax year, the applicable Special Source Credits 
percentage shall not be reduced to increase the annual fee-in-lieu of tax 
liability, as set forth in the foregoing sentence of this Section 1, if, and to 
the extent that, any above-referenced shortfall in annual fee-in-lieu of tax 
liability (as compared to the Base Fee-in-Lieu-of-Tax Payment Amount) 
is due to disposal, decommissioning, or other action resulting in Project 
property no longer being subject to fee-in-lieu of tax payments. 

Pursuant to Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii) of the Code, to the extent 
any Special Source Credits are used as payment for personal property, 
including machinery and equipment, and the personal property is removed 
from the Project at any time prior to the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement, then the annual fee-in-lieu of tax liability due on such personal 
property for the year of such removal from the Project shall also be due 
for the two (2) years following such removal; provided, that if such 
removed personal property is replaced with other personal property, then 
such personal property shall not be considered removed from the Project 
for these purposes. 

Section 3. Remaining Terms and Provisions. Except as amended in Section 2 above, the terms and 
provisions of the Special Source Credit Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

Section 4. Entire Understanding. The Special Source Credit Agreement, as amended by this Second 
Amendment, expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto pertaining to the 
matters set forth herein and therein. 

Section 5. Multiple Counterparts. This Second Amendment may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 



 

10 

[Execution Pages Follow]



 

   

         Ordinance 2021-6 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed this Second 
Amendment to Special Source Credit Agreement, effective the date first above written. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

       
Dr. Wylie Frederick 
Interim Supervisor/Chairman, Chester County Council 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Karen Lee 
Clerk, Chester County Council 



 

 

     Ordinance 2021-6 
 
 
 
 
INSURANCE INSTITUTE FOR BUSINESS 
AND HOME SAFETY 

By:       
      

Name:       
      

Its:       
      

 



CHESTER COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 2021-16 

AUTHORIZING FUNDING FOR ONE OR MORE PROJECTS ACCORDING TO THE 
AMERICAN RECOVERY PLAN ACT OF 2021; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Chester County has been allocated $6,253,525.00 according to the American Recovery Plan 
Act of 2021 (“ARPA Funds”); 

WHEREAS, the County intends to expend its ARPA Funds for two County projects in particular 
amounts and in particular priorities; and 

WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the County intends to authorize such expenditures. 

NOW, THEREFORE Chester County, South Carolina, ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Authorization. In the following priority, the County authorizes the expenditure of (a) not to 
exceed $4,000,000 for the Fort Lawn Sewer project to support (i) Project Magma, as contemplated by the 
Memorandum of Understanding, between Chester County and the Town of Fort Lawn, which is expected 
to be dated on or about November 1, 2021, and (ii) other development in that region of the County, and (b) 
all remaining ARPA Funds (until completion of the project) to support the 16th project on the County’s 
2020 capital project sales and use tax referendum: Countywide Emergency Communications Project. 

If any funds remain following the expenditure of ARPA Funds as outlined above, then those funds shall 
be used to offset additional projects as the County may approve by subsequent ordinance. 

Section 2. General Repealer. Any prior ordinance, resolution, or order, the terms of which conflict 
with this Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective after its public hearing and third reading. 

   CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 ____________________________________________ 
 Interim Supervisor/Chairman, Chester County Council 

[SEAL] 
ATTEST: 

Clerk to Council, Chester County Council 

First Reading:  
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing:  
Third Reading:  

October 4, 2021 
October 18, 2021 
November 15, 2021 
November 15, 2021 



CHESTER COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 2021-17 

AMENDING ORDINANCE NOS. 2018-5 AND 3-19-12A, TO UPDATE THE 
DEFINITION OF “PROJECTS” UNDER AN INSTALLMENT PURCHASE PLAN OF 
FINANCE; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Chester County Council enacted Ordinance No. 3-19-12A, on March 19, 2012, a copy 
of which is attached as Exhibit A (“2012 Ordinance”), authorizing a plan of finance for various capital 
projects; 

WHEREAS, the Chester County Council Enacted Ordinance No. 2018-5, on February 5, 2018, a copy 
of which is attached as Exhibit B (“2018 Ordinance”), which made amendments to the definition of 
“Project” as that term had been defined in the 2012 Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the County desires to amend the 2018 Ordinance and 2012 Ordinance to further update 
the definition of “Projects” to provide for additional capital projects for funding through the installment 
plan of finance. 

NOW, THEREFORE Chester County, South Carolina, ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Amendments. The 2018 Ordinance and the 2012 Ordinance are amended: 

(a) by deleting Section 1(a) of the 2018 Ordinance and Section l(d) in the 2012 Ordinance in their 
entirety and replacing them with the language contained inside the quotation marks: 

“(d) The County has determined to acquire real property in the county and 
to construct, install, renovate, furnish, equip and make various 
improvements to the real property for: (i) the projects, as set forth more 
particularly on Exhibit A, and (ii) other capital projects as determined by 
the County Supervisor (collectively, (i) and (ii) are “Projects”); the County 
has determined that it may form and use one or more entities, on the behalf 
and for the benefit of the County, to accomplish the purposes of this 
Ordinance (collectively, “Entity”), including the issuance of bonds and the 
execution and delivery of various documents to effect the transfer of real 
property interests in the Projects to, or from (or both), the County and other 
related matters, all intended to accomplish an installment purchase 
financing.”; and 

(b) by deleting Exhibit A to the 2018 Ordinance, and replacing it with a new Exhibit, a copy of which 
is attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit C. 

Section 2. Chester Facilities Corporation Request. The County hereby directs the Interim County 
Supervisor to request the Chester Facilities Corporation (“CFC”) to do all things necessary and proper to 
reallocate funds from the CFC’s outstanding Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (Chester County 2018 
Projects) Taxable Series 2018, issued June 28, 2018, in the original par amount of $19,255,000. 

Section 3. General Repealer. Any prior ordinance, resolution, or order, the terms of which are in 
conflict with this Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 4. Savings Clause. Any actions taken or authorized to be taken under either or both the 2018 
Ordinance and/or the 2012 Ordinance are treated as remaining in full force and effect for the purpose of 
sustaining any pending or vested right, as of the effective date of this Ordinance, and for the enforcement 
of rights, duties, and liabilities as they stood under the repealed or amended portion of the 2018 Ordinance 
and/or the 2012 Ordinance. 

Section 5. Effective Date. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, this Ordinance is effective 
after its third reading and public hearing.  



                                                                        ORDINANCE NO. 2021-17 
 
 

     CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 

                                                                             
                                                                     Interim Supervisor/Chairman, Chester County Council 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Clerk to Council, Chester County Council 
 
First Reading:  October 4, 2021 
Second Reading: October 18, 2021 
Public Hearing:  November 15, 2021 
Third Reading:  November 15, 2021 
  



         ORDINANCE NO. 2021-17 
 

EXHIBIT A 
2012 ORDINANCE 

  









































      ORDINANCE NO. 2021-17 
 

EXHIBIT B 
2018 ORDINANCE 

  







         ORDINANCE NO. 2021-17 
 

EXHIBIT C 
“EXHIBIT A 

PROJECTS 

County conference and event center (known as the Chester County Gateway) 
County courthouse 
County museum 
County E-911 center 
County investment (spec) building not to exceed an expenditure of $1,000,000 
County hazard materials building 
Additional industrial/commercial property and development 
Infrastructure related to each of these projects 
County-wide emergency radio system 
County animal shelter 
North Chester fire substation 
Lewis fire substation (South Fork) 
Rodman park improvements” 



CHESTER COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 2021-18 

PROVIDING FOR EXCESS FUNDING TO BE USED FOR “PROJECTS” AND/OR 
“CAPITAL PROJECTS” AS PROVIDED UNDER ORDINANCE NO. 2019-5; AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Chester County Council (“County Council”) enacted Ordinance No. 2019-5, on June 
15, 2020 (“2019 Ordinance”), authorizing, among other things, the imposition of and expenditure from a 
capital project sales and use tax to fund “projects” and/or “capital projects,” as described in the 2019 
Ordinance and in the Capital Project Sales Tax Act, located in South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-
10-300, et seq. (collectively, “Act”);

WHEREAS, the Act provides the County Council with the authority to expend amounts collected in
excess of amounts necessary to complete (as described in the approving referendum) funding for projects 
listed in the approving referendum to be used to complete projects for which the tax is imposed; and 

WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the County Council intends to authorize such funding. 

NOW, THEREFORE Chester County, South Carolina, ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Amendments. The County Council authorizes amounts collected in excess of amounts 
necessary to complete (as described in the approving referendum) funding for Project 1: Lewis Fire 
Department South Fork Substation, Project 2: North Chester Fire Department Substation, Projects 3/6 
Rodman Sports Complex Improvements, and Project 16: Countywide Emergency Communications Project, 
to be used to provide additional funding for these projects, provided, however, that, to the extent funding 
to complete a project is sourced from other monies, then (a) no funding shall come from the tax and/or (b) 
funding from the tax previously expended shall be reimbursed to the tax fund from the alternate source. 

Section 2. General Repealer. Any prior ordinance, resolution, or order, the terms of which conflict 
with this Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 3. Savings Clause. Any action taken or authorized to be taken under the 2019 Ordinance is 
treated as remaining in full force and effect for the purpose of sustaining any pending or vested right, as of 
the effective date of this Ordinance, and for the enforcement of rights, duties, and liabilities as they stood 
under the repealed or amended portion of the 2019 Ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective after its public hearing and third reading. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

____________________________________________ 
Interim Supervisor/Chairman, Chester County Council 

[SEAL] 
ATTEST: 

Clerk to Council, Chester County Council 

First Reading:  
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing:  
Third Reading:  

October 4, 2021 
October 18, 2021 
November 15, 2021 
November 15, 2021 































TELEPHONE (803) 581-2829          FAX (855) 933-2533 

 

Chester County, South Carolina 

Office of Purchasing 
1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass 
Chester, SC 29706 

 

 
Date:  October 18, 2021 
To:  County Council 
From:  Susan M. Cok 
Subject:  Approval of Bid – Preventative Maintenance – Fire Apparatus   

 

Chester County Council Members, 

On September 28, 2021, the Purchasing Office and Fire Service issued RFP 2122-01. The bids were 
opened on October 12, 2021. There was 1 bid received and our recommendation is to award the bid to 
Lesslie Welding & Fabricating out of Rock Hill, SC in the amount of $29,080.90. This will be a 2-year 
contract with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year contracts. 
 
 

Respectfully, 

Susan M. Cok 

Susan M. Cok,  
Director of Contracts and Procurement 

 

 

 

 
 

      
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TELEPHONE (803) 581-2829          FAX (855) 933-2533 

 

 

 

 Bid Tabulation  
RFP 2122-01 Preventative Maintenance – Fire Apparatus 

October 12, 2021 @ 2:00 pm 
 

Bidder 
Agreement 

Form  

Non-
Collusion 
Affidavit  

Certificate 
of 

Familiarity  
Bid 

Form 

Bid Total                 

Lesslie Welding & Fabricating – Rock Hill, SC √ √ √ √ $29,080.90 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
 
 
       
      

I certify that the above bid tabulation is an accurate representation of the information set forth on the bid 
proposals received. 

      
Susan M. Cok 10/12/2021      
Purchasing Official Date     

      
Barkley Ramsey 10/12/2021      
Witness Date     

 














































































	1. 10-18-2021 Agenda
	2. 10-4-2021 Minutes
	3. 2021-6 IBHS FINAL - Second Amendment Ordinance - Chester County (IBHS)-8397371-v5
	4.  2021-16 ARPA Project Funding Ordinance (2021.10.05)kl
	5.  2021-17 CFC Project Amending Ordinance (2021.10.05)kl
	6.  2021-18 CPST Project Funding Ordinance (2021.10.05)kl
	7. CCMA21-28 Mattie Howze_Redacted
	8.  CCMA21-29 Leonard Stevens Bishop_Redacted
	9.  CCMA21-30 Nate McDaniel_Redacted
	10. Bid Approval- RFP 2122-01 Preventative Maintenance - Fire Apparatus
	11. EMS Org Chart Change Request
	12. Fort Lawn Forestry Grant Application_Redacted
	13. Lando FIre 2021 forestry grant completed document_Redacted
	14. Body and Car Camera contract_Redacted
	15. JAG Grant
	16. COVID grant



